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MOTTO:

"The, Love of Christ Constraineth Us.”

PRAYERS

THE PRAYER FOR THE WOMAN’S AUXILIARY

Almighty God, our Heavenly Father, bless, we pray Theei, our
work for the extension of Thy Kingdom, and make us so thankful
for the precious gift to us of Thy beloved Son, that we. may pray
fervently, labour diligently, and give liberally to Him known to all
nations as their Saviour and their King; through the same Jesus
Christ our Lord, Amen.

NOON-DAY PRAYER FOR MISSIONS

Blessed Saviour, who at this hour didst hang upon the Cross
stretching forth .Thy loving arms: grant that all mankind may look
upon Thee, and be saved, through Thy mercies and merits, who livest
and reignest, with the Father, and the Holy Ghost, one God, world
without end. Amen.

A PRAYER FOR THE UNITED THANK-OFFERING OF
THE WOMEN OF THE CHURCH

O Lord, our Heavenly Father, we pray Thee to send forth more
laborers into Thy harvest and grant them Thy special grace for
every need. Guard and guide the workers in the, field, and draw us
into closer fellowship with them. Dispose the hearts of all women
everywhere to give galdly as Thou hast given to them. Accept, from
grateful hearts, our United Thank-Offering' of prayer and gifts and
joyful service, and bless it to the coming of Thy Kingdom, throught
Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.
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DIOCESAN INSTITUTIONS

St. Monica’s Home—c/o Mrs. R. C. Devin, Executive, Des Moines,
St. Luke’s Hospital—c/o Miss Craig-Anderson, Davenport.
St. Katherine’s School—c/o Sister Superior, Davenport.

DIOCESAN OFFICERS—1931

Honorary president and Devotional Secretary—Mrs. H. S. Longley,
Bishopstead, Cathedral Close, Davenport.

President— Mrs. Y. H. Mdrgan, 905 S. 6th Ave. W., Newton.

/1st Vice President— Mrs. Jessie A. Jones, 304 Rocksylvania, Ave.,;
lowa Falls.

, 2nd Vice President-—Mrs. R. B. Comstock, 4045 Capitol St., Sioux
City.

Secretary— Mrs. Merrill Gilmore, 411 N. Court St., Ottumwa.

Treasurer— Mrs. Lester T. Jackson, 2336 Linden Drive, Cedar
Rapids.

United Thank Offering Custodian— Mrs. V. H. Morgan, 905 S. 6th
Ave. W., Newton.

Educational Secretary— Mrs. John Flockhart, 1428 Locust St.,
Dubuque.

Chairman of Isolated— Miss Mary Alice Bailey, Charles City.

Church Periodical Club Chairman— Mrs. R. A. Nicholson, 409 E.
2nd St. N., Newton.

Supply Secretary— Mrs. Forest Treat, Masonic Sanitarium, Betten-
n dorf.

Publicity Chairman— Mrs. L. W. Wheeler, 1021 7th Ave. N., Fort
Dodge.

Vocational Chairman—Mrs. R. E. McEvoy, 212 Johnson St., lowa
City.

Representative, Province of the Northwest— Mrs. J. E. Kinney, 737
Corona St., Denver, Colo.

DEANERY CHAIRMEN

Dubuque Deanery— Mrs. Walter M. Eaton, 1407 4th Ave., Cedar
Rapids,

Des Moines Deanery— Mrs. L. B. Martin, 1415 5th St.,, Des Moines.

Muscatine Deanery-—Mrs. Alfred D. Kolkebeck, 213 Louisa St., Bur-
lington.

(For District and Parish Officers see back of book)
3

Original document located in The Archives of the Episcopal Church.



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING
FEBRUARY 3, 1931

The Annual Meeting of the Woman’s Auxiliary opened at 9:30
A. M. February 3, 1931 in Trinity Cathedral Parish House, Daven-
port, with Mrs. Jessie Jones, the; President, in the chair.

The opening prayers were read by the Rev. Stanley F'ulwood of
Cedar Falls.

The President appointed the following committees: Credentials—
Miss Hennigbaum and Mrs. Kimball of Davenport; Resolutions—
Mrs. Wyckoff and Mrs. Longley, Jr. of Des Moines and Mrs. Griffith
of Davenport.

At this point, the Woman’s Auxiliary went into joint session with
the Convention proper to listen to the address of the Bishop.

Following Bishop Longley’s address, the President called the
meeting to order and the report of the Constitution Committee was
given by Mrs. L. W. Wheeler as follows:

“The Executive Board recommends that Article IV of the Con-
stitution entitled ‘Officers’ be changed to read— ‘The Officers shall
consist of an Honorary President, a President, two Vice-Presidents,
a Secretary, a Treasurer, U. T. O. Custodian, Educational Secretary,
Supply Secretary, C. P. C. Correspondent, Christian Social Service
Chairman, Publicity Chairman, Devotional Secretary, Chairman for
the Isolated, and Vocational Secretary,” The Executive Board also
recommends that Article Il Section Il of the By-laws referring to
the nominating committee be changed to read: “A Nominating Com-
mittee shall be appointed by the President to bring in nominations
for elective officers if directed by a two-thirds vote of the members
present at the annual meeting.”

It was moved by Mrs. Wheeler, seconded by Mrs. Enyart, that
these changes be adopted. Carried.

The President appointed a Nominating Committee to consist of
Mrs. Watzik, Mrs. Henry, and Mrs. Longley, Sr.

The report of the President was then read.

A letter was read by the secretary from the Rev. L. S. Burroughs
of Ames thanking the Woman’s Auxiliary for their generosity and
splendid work for the Font at the Student Chapel at Ames.

The meeting was then turned over to the Educational Secretary
who conducted a short conference on Religious Education and the
problems met in carrying the work forward.

The offering was then taken and reported as $19.07.

It was moved by Mrs. Wyckoff, seconded by Mrs. Morgan that the
offerings of the Convention be used for the Font at St. John’s,
Ames.

The report of the Treasurer, Mrs. Lester Jackson, was then pret-
sented. Following her report, Mrs. Jackson took the pledges for
1931.

The report of the Supply Secretary, Mrs. A. W. Brown was pre-
sented.

The President appointed Mrs L. W. Wheeler of Ft. Dodge as
Chairman of the Committee on Revision of the Constitution, author-
izing Mrs: Wheeler to choose her own committee.

The report of the Chairman for the Isolated, Miss Bailey, was read
by the Secretary.
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Moved by Mrs. Longley, Sr., seconded by Mrs. Kimball that a
letter of sympathy be sent Miss Bailey expressing our reigret at her
absence from the convention and also expressing our appreciation
of her splendid work during the past year. Carried.

It was moved by Mrs. Jackson, seconded by Mrs. Morgan that the
Woman’s Auxiliary go on record as advocating the appointment of
an Arch Deacon for the Diocese, the Secretary to notify the Bishop
and Council of the same. Carried.

Noonday prayers were then read by Mrs. Longley, Sr., the De-
votional Chairman.

It was moved by Mrs. Longley, seconded by Mrs. Enyart that let-
ters of sympathy be sent to those Diocesan officers who were unable
to attend the Convention because of illness— Mrs. P. R. Lacey, Mrs.
Nicholson, and Mrs. Mounsey. Carried.

The meeting adjourned for lunch.

Following a joint session With the Convention proper at which
reports of work were presented by Miss Caroline Averill on the G.
F. S. and Mrs. Perry on St. Monica’s Home, Des Moines, the Con-
vention of the Woman’s Auxiliary was called to order at 3 P. M. by
Mrs. Jones, the President.

Miss Hennigbaum gave the report of the Credentials Committee
showing a total of 78 delegates present at the morning session.

Mrs. Longley, Sr. gave the report of the Nominating Committee
who presented the following ticket:

Honorary President, Mrs. H. S. Longley, Sr.

President, Mrs. L. W. Wheeler of Ft. Dodge .

1st Vice President, Mrs. Jessie Jones of lowa Falls.

2nd Vice President, Mrs. R. B. Comstock of lowa Falls.

Secretary, Mrs. Merrill Gilmore of Ottumwa.

Treasurer, Mrs. Lester Jackson of Cedar Rapids.

Educational Secretary, Mrs. J. E. Flockhart of Dubuque.

Supply Secretary, Mrs. Forrest Treat of Davenport.

Christian Social Service Chairman, Mrs. E. B. Mounsey of
W aterloo. . ! . . .

Chairman of the Isolated, Miss Alice Bailey of Charles City.

Publicity Chairman, Mrs. L. W. Wheeler of Ft. Dodge.

C. P. C. Correspondent, Mrs. R. A. Nicholson of Newton.

Vocational Chairman, Mrs. McEvoy of lowa City.

Mrs. Wheeler withdrew her name as nominee for the Presidency
so the Nominating Committee was forced to retire to secure other

uuuriwgtxrléLF')Loar‘t of Miss Craig-Anderson, superintendent of St. Lui(e»s
Hospital, Davenport was then given while awaiting the report of the
Nominating Committee,. . ) ) \

The report of St. Katherine’s School was given by Sister Esther.

The Nominating Committee then brought in their report, substi-
tuting the name of Mrs. V. H. Morgan of Newton for that of MrsL
L W. Wheeler for President.

it was moved by Mrs. Morehouse, seconded by Mrs. Ellsworth,
that these nominees as presented by the Nominating Committee be
declared elected for the coming year. Carried.

The report of the TJ. T. O. Custodian, Mrs. V. H. Morgan was then
given, followed by a short conference on the U. T. O.

Nominations for the delegates to the General Convention in Den-
ver were then declared in order. ]

The following were nominated: Mrs. Henry of Des Moines, Mrs.
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H. S. Longley, Sr., Mrs. H. S. Longley, Jr., Mrs. L. S. Burroughs,
Mrs. V. H Morgan

It was moved by Mrs Jackson, seconded by Mrs. Hoag that the
delegates nominated be declared elected. Carried.

The following were then nominated for alternates to the General
Convention: Mrs. Jones, Mrs. Chappell, Mrs. Brown, Mrs. Jackson,
Mrs. Wheeler.

It was moved by Mrs. Longley, Jr., seconded by Mrs. Ellsworth
that the persons nominated for alternates be declared electer.
Carried.

The report of the Devotional Secretary, Mrs. Longley:, Sr. was
then presented.

The report of the Publicity Chairman, Mrs. L. W. Wheeler was
next presented.

Moved by Mrs. Longley, Sr., seconded by Mrs. Chappell that a
Committee be appointed to draw up resolutions expressing our love
and devotion and our grateful thanks to Mrs. Jessie Jones for the
leadership and the inspiration she has been to us in the work in her
six years in office. Carried.

The report of the Resolutions Committee-was presented by Mrs.
Wy;:koff. The Committee on Resolutions made the following re-
port:

“Whereas, during the past year, the Woman’s Auxiliary of the
Diocese of lowa has lost by death the following members: Mrs.
Empke and Mrs. Mcintosh of St. Paul’s, Council Bluffs; Mrs. John
Kalback of St. James’, Oskaloosa; Mrs. McLanahan of St. John’s,
Cedar Rapids; Mrs. A. j. Van Duzee of St. John’s, Dubuque—

Be it resolved, that we hold them in loving memory. May they
rest in peace.

Be it also resolved, that this organization go on record as*ex-
pressing their love and devotion and grateful thanks to their re-
tiring President, Mrs. Jessie Jones, for her leadership and inspira-
tion during her six years in office.

Be it further resolved: That the Woman’s Auxiliary hereby ex-
press their appreciation of the repeated hospitality of Trinity
Cathedral Parish.

Signed: (Mrs. W. N.) Jane A. Wyckoff, (Mrs. J. D.) Mary S
Griffith, (Mrs. H. S, Jr.) Agnes F Longley.

The offering was then taken and reported as $6.64.

The minutes for the day were, then read and approved.

The meeting adjourned to reconvene at 9 A. M. the following
morning.

Wednesday, February 4th, 1931, the Woman’s Auxiliary recon-
vened at 9 A. M. in Trinity Cathedral Parish House.

The Rev. J. D. Griffith led the opening devotions.

The Rev. Fr. Roberts, rector of St. Mary’, Keokuk, addressed

the meeting thanking the women for their interest and help in his
work and pleading for continued support.
i The reports of the Deanery Meetings were then presented by the
following people: Mrs. Longley, Jr. reported on the Des Moines
Meeting; Mrs. Jones of Lowa Falls reported on the Dubuque Dean-
ery Meeting in Cedar Rapids; and Mrs. Hoag of Burlington reported
on the Muscatine Deanery Meeting in Burlington.

Reports on the District Meetings for the year were presented by
various people. In practically all places where the Districts meet

6

Original document located in The Archives of the Episcopal Church.



regularly there has been a good response and the work is pro-
gressing judgin? from the reports given.
The offering for the morning was taken and reported as $7.36.
The new officers were then introduced to the Convention.
The minutes of the morning’s session were read and approved.
Mrs. Jones closed the meeting with prayer.
Respectfully submitted.
(Mrs. J. E.) Gwendolyn Plockhart,
Secretary pro-tem.

REPORT OF PRESIDENT

The report of your president for the 44th Annual Convention of
the Woman’s Auxiliary to the National Council cannot express in
words all of the burning zeal that has been put into the Auxiliary
the past few years, to lead the Branches into the Way that leads
to a radiant Life; of Service.

The Woman's Auxiliary is well organized for its work in the Five
Fields of Service. In the past few years in this Diocese we have
developed until there is a Diocesan Chairman of each department
of the National Council. Cooperating with the Diocesan organiza-
tion, the active Branches have a Parish Chairman of each depart-
ment of the Woman’s Auxiliary.

The very general uniting of all the women of the parish into a

Guild-auxiliary has brought about all of the women of the parish
working for the Parish, Community, Diocese, Nation and the World,
thus fulfilling the ideal for the Woman’s Auxiliary which is: “All
of the women of the Church working for all of the Church.” When
that ideal is carried out all of the; women of the Church have had
an opportunity to know about the work being done for the exten-
sion of His Kingdom through study, and service, and gifts.
When every parish is interested, and delegates and others attend
the Convention, the, Deaneries and the District meetings, they be-
come informed, and they also may be the means of interesting the
younger women, which is well, not only because the Woman s
Auxiliary greatly needs the ypunger women, but because they sore-
ly need what the Auxiliary has to give;,— knowledge, inspiration,
and spiritual growth through Service.

When we have a Diocesan Vocational Service Chairman appointed,
then the Diocesan Board will be complete. The Diocesan working
force is carrying out ably the work of Christian Educators, Christian
Social Service, United Thank Offering, work among the Isolated,
Publicity, Box Supply, Church Periodical Club, Devotional and Vo-
cational Service. . . .

o not think the women of the Diocese quite realize what a
splendid group of leaders these Diocesan Chairmen are. May | be-
speak a careful perusal of their fine reports in the 1931 Journal as
well as an efficient cooperation in their able, voluntary service for
the carrying forward of His: “Go ye into all of the world,” the last
command He-gave His disciples before His Ascension.

Mrs. Flockhj$rt has given a most comprehensive outline for a
program and "for study classes. The suggested program that was
mailed to you received recognition from the National Council, as-
suring her that her splendid piece of work would be used at Head-
quarters. It. was so complete and fine a digest of the Church Pro-
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gram for this Trienium. Mrs. Flockhart’s leadership is unsurpassed.
All who were privileged to hear her presentation of the Church Pro-
gram at the Deaneries and the Districts felt the influence of her
informing and thrilling talks.

The Journal edited by our Secretary, Mrs. Lacy, is not only an
improvement oyer the former W. A. Journals but was published as
soon as possible after the Diocesan Convention. The cooperation
Jof the IBranches helps in bringing about an early publication of the
ourna

The new Treasurer, Mrs. L. T. Jackson, has been prompt and effi-
ient in the dispatch of the, business of her office.

Mrs. Longley, Honorary President and Devotional Secretary, has
done all in her power to advance interest and be of assistance in the
devotional life of the Diocese.

Our Vice-President, as Publicity Chairman, has brought before
you as never before, the Spirit of Missions. This Trienium year
we should take the Spirit of Missions, the best Missionary magazine
published, so acknowledged by all who know it.

Mrs. Morgan, U. T. O. Custodian, needs no introduction to you.
She has ably presented -the little, Blue! Box for six years.

Mrs. A. W. Brown has efficiently carried the difficult box supply
work for six years as her report at this convention will prove.

Mrs. Nicholson still carries on the C. P. C. work under the same
handicap in the Postal Service. One can say of her “The Lord lov-
eth a cheerful giver,” especially under adverse circumstances.

The work of Christian Social Service, under Mrs. Mounsey and
work among the Isolated, under Miss Bailey, only needs the de-
veloping which time and their able, consecrated service will give.

The officers of the National Council asked the Woman’s Auxil-
iary to give the efforts which they had used so successfully for the
Cor%orate Gift to the carrying forward of the advance work program
of the Church.

We have done so by continuing to make our Corﬁorate Gift
pledges, calling it only by another name—Advance Wor

The Advance Work project for this Diocese is a new Church for
Ashikaga, Tokio, Japan. |If that project has not been presented to
your Auxiliary as yet, it will be presented to you soon. A leaflet
on Ashikaga, may be obtained at “281” for the asking.

The two subjects which the Executive Board asked us to stress
this Trienium were Personal Evangelism and the paying of our
Quotas. We all know that if we are growing in Grace and in know-
ledge and love of our Lord and Saviour, Jesus Christ, we will pay
our Quota

It is our responsibility to see that the Rector has our coopera-
tion in raising the Budget Quota and the Advance Work project.

When we think of the “weary, waiting, world” which is still
without Christ, we realize that “unless our nation rises to its great
responsibility it will be numbered with the great nations of the past
of whom we sing in the Magnificant: ‘He hath put down the mighty
from their seat™”

In the answers to the questionnaire on the Devotional Life, six-
teen out of the 22 replying, observed with other Churches the World
Day of Prayer. We trust that all of the Branches observed the pre-
sentation of the U. T. O. with a Corporate Communion the first
Sunday in May and the first Sunday in November. In the 6th
Province All Saints Day has been set aside for a day of Interces-
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sion. We cannot afford to neglect so great a privilege of prayer
as these days offer us. There has not been an increase iIn the
subscriptions to the Prayer Leaflet even though it has enlarged its
plan for intelligent intercessions by making it a monthly Leaflet.

More should avail themselves of this help in making us co-
workers with God through His appointed means of prayer, the
greatest power in the world.

Through the interests of the Diocesan Auxiliary Board it was
made possible for me to represent the lowa Branch of the Auxil-
iary at the Provincial Synod of the 6th Province, which met at
Miles City, Montana, the last part of September. Mrs. Kinney, of
Denver, the Woman’s Auxiliary President of the 6th Province was
re-elected. As the Trienium meets in Denver next September, it
will be of benefit to have Mrs. Kinney in active service for the
Auxiliary.
~Your President was elected Third Vice-President of the 6th Pro-
vince.

The Woman’s Auxiliary Board in session at Waterloo last Sep-
tember, voted to give a Baptismal Font for St. John’s, Ames, not
to exceed $300 in cost. Let this objective of the women of the Dio-
cese; be met soon, that St. John’s may have the benefit of the wo-
men of the Diocese be met soon, that St. John’s may have the bene-
fit of the Font of which it is in need. We hope this will be a free-
will offering.

We have 47 Branches of the Auxiliary in this Diocese. The en-
couragement this year has been in a greater interest in the work.
More are asking intelligent questions and seem anxious to cooperate
in having programs, reading of the official Books on India and ap-
pointing Chairmen of the six departments of the Auxiliary.

Your. President has, in addition to the routine work of the office,
edited the W. A. page in the lowa Churchman; had 50 copies of
the Church Program mailed to the Parishes and Missions; at-
tended and presided at the W. A. Convention at Davenport; at-
tended the Bishop and Council Meeting in Des Moines, and was ap-
pointed to act on the Diocesan Committee for the Advanced Pro-
Jject at Ashikaga; spoke at St. Andrew’s (Des Moines) Auxiliary
Meeting and at St. Stevens Auxiliary Meeting at Newton; was a
speaker at Sioux City District and Girls' Friendly Society in May;
distributed 37 Pentecostal Leaflets; attended the two Board meet-
ings; attended the Waterloo District meeting; was the speaker at
the Emmetsburg District Meeting at Estherville and also was the
speaker at St. John’s Auxiliary, Ames; attended the Dubuque Dean-
ery at Cedar Rapids, presiding in the absence of the President and
sent 572 letters and 27 postals in 1930.

My time in office (as president) now draws to a close and as a
parting message to the Woman’s Auxiliary in this Diocese may |
thank you with all my heart for your helpful cooperation during
the past six years in carrying forward the work of the Auxiliary
in His Kingdom. It is the faithful workers who win in any en-
deavor. No organization can rise any higher than the interest in
the Guild-Auxiliaries until the highest good may be accomplished
bylthem. It has been a great privilege and real pleasure to work
with you. The many friendships formed will be a lasting blessing
to me.
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Christ says: “Herein is my Father glorified, that ye bear much
fruit; so shall ye be My disciples.” God grant that we bear much
fruit in the coming year, that we may be called His disciples and
be found worthy of the name.

Jessie A. Jones,
Diocesan President.

REPORT OF EDUCATIONAL SECRETARY
OF THE WOMAN’S AUXILIARY

FROM JANUARY 1, 1930 to January 1, 1931

In closing five years in office as Educational Secretary | can say
for 1930 that we have not, at least, lost ground— though | am sure
the advance made is neither as great as | would like to see it nor
as great as we are capable of making it.

“In my country,” said Alice to the Queen, “when you run very
fast you usually get to some other place.” “A slow sort of country,”
said the Queen. “Here it takes all the running you can do to stay
in the same place.”

Is that a description of our educational work?

To report statistics first: Thirty branches have returned their
report to me on educational Work. Out of these 30, 28 report
some sort of educational work being done in their Branches; 22
used the study book- for the year; there were 15 discussion groups;
14 conducted program meetings; 3 gave missionary plays; 2 had
reading circles; 2 had loaning libraries or book-slielves; and one
branch sent a delegate to a summer conference.

| am delighted to report a steady increase in the number of study
books sold. This is not only indicative of the fact that every branch
desires to study, but also that every branch knows that there is a
suggested study book for each year, and that they wish to study
that particular book—in other words, to cooperate.

During the year | have secured 3 subscriptions to the; magazine
“Findings”, 2 subscriptions to “The Prayer Leaflet”, and 7 subscrip-
tions to “News Notes”. | have sold 121 study books; sold 76
prayer cards; and have mailed out innumerable free pamphlets on
the Church Periodical Club, the Advance Work Program, Christian
Social Service, and on Publicity.

I have written 7 circular letters, sent out a list of Lenten read-
ing to every branch, published and mailed a suggested program for
the autumn on the “General Church Program”, mailed an outline
on “India”, written articles for the lowa Churchman, and have
written 603 personal letters, and post cards.

I made two addresses at the Diocesan Convention in February, at-
tended two Executive Board meetings, addressed three spring Dis-
trict meetings, addressed five fall District meetings, addressed the
three Deanery meetings in the fall, and | addressed one, Parish
Branch meeting outside of this Diocese. In the spring | attended
the National Conference; of Educational Secretaries and Diocesan
Officers' at Racine, and was privileged to be one of the teachers at
that meeting. In June | taught a course for a week at the Minne-
sota Summer Conference, “The Woman's Auxiliary Life of the
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Church." And, in October, | addressed the meeting of the Chicago
Synod of the Woman’s Auxiliary which met in Springfield, 111/
I have also acted as the Educational Secretary for this Province.

In looking forward to the future of our work, | want to call
your attention to the tremendous emphasis being placed today on
adult education, both secular and religious. More books are being
written per year on this subject than have ever been written before.

The Woman’s Auxiliary has always been a leader in Educational
work through her "mission study classes”. Today the Woman's
Auxiliary is not an Auxiliary to the Department of Missions. It is
an Auxiliary to the whole Church—which is the Body of Christ.
It is an Auxiliary then, to Jesus.

Consequently, the Woman’s Auxiliary offers to the women of the
Church a type of study class which has as its aim "to know Christ
and to make Him known.”

The program of study presented is not one that will amuse or
entertain us. Christ did not die on the cross that his messengers—
however feebly they may present their message—might amuse us.

But the Educational work presented is one in which every group
of women is given an opportunity to get together and to think out
some of the problems which concern, not only our parish work, nor
even our own Church’s work, but problems which concern our own
personal relation to our Master and to the world in which we livei.

There should not be a parish or Mission in this Diocese in which
the Guild or Woman’s Auxiliary does not plan carefully for some
kind of Educational work—study class, reading circle, discussion
group, program meeting, loaning library, missionary play, etc.
Peoplei are interested in and concerned about the things which they
know.

May God grant that, in the year before us, we may know Christ
more fully in order to make Him known to others.
Respectfully submitted,
(Mrs. J. E.) Gwendolyn A. Flockhart.

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
WOMAN’S AUXILIARY J1

Your secretary submits the following report:

The 1930 Journal was compiled, and printed, and distributed,
copies being sent to—

The secretary, treasurer ,and president of each parish branch.

The rector of each parish.

All Diocesan institutions.

All Diocesan officers.

The District Chairmen.

Deanery officers.

The Provincial Synod representative.

The Provincial Synod Secretary, Miss Sprague, 4338 Franklin
St., Omaha, Neb.

National Headquarters, New York City.
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Mi\ Warfield Hobbs, Editor of “The Spirit of Missions”, with all
Publicity Chairmen marked.

Miss Grace Lindley, Ex. Sec’y.

Miss Edna Beardsley, Ass’t. Ex. Secy.

Mrs. T. K. Wade, Supply Secly.

The Rev. Charles N. Lathrop.

President of Diocesan G. F. S.

Other names as suggested by the President.

A new form of parish report blank which had been discussed at
Board meeting was prepared and printed. Samples were inserted
in order that the officers of each branch might familiarize them-
selves witlh the form.

Twelve hundred sheets of stationery were printed and distributed
to-the members of the Executive Board. As this was insufficient,
late in November a generous supply omitting the names of the
officers was printed. This paper can be used during the interin
between Board meetings.

In December, notice of an amendment to Article IV of the Con-
stitution was sent out in accordance with Article V.

Parish report blanks have been sent out, many having been filled
in and returned.

I regret that this brings to a close my fifteen months of service.
It has been a real pleasure to render some service to the Woman’s
ﬁ\uxiliary of lowa and to have come in closer contact with its mem-
ers.

Respectfully submitted,
Jessie H. Lacy.

CHRISTIAN SOCIAL SERVICE IN IOWA

lowa reports an increased interest in Christian Social Service
\(lsvo'rlifj being done through the Woman’s Auxiliary or Auxiliary-

uilds.

In answer to questionnaires sent out to each Auxiliary, we note
}hﬁ‘é Christian Social Service work is being efficiently done in many
ields:

1. By providing needed things for the needy people within the
parish and Community.
2. Throuh cooperation with local Social Welfare Agencies in
clinic and field work.
3. Through cooperation with other local Christian.Organiza-
tions in the study of local Social Service needs and work to be done.

Some Auxiliaries report, “Jails visited,” “Calls made at County
Homes,” and similar service done.

The most needy, and perhaps the most important, Diocesan
Christian Social Service Institution is St. Monica’s Home for Girls,
Des Moines, lowa. This is a growing institution of Christian Social
Service type, and during the year 1931 much stress will be laid on
its present needs; and it is hoped that definite plans will be made
to provide a suitable recreatibnal building for the girls. For several
years the various Auxiliaries have sent St. Monica’s gifts of linens
and foodstuffs.

Another Diocesan Institution is St. Luke’s Hospital, Davenport,
and a great many pieces of linen, etc., have been sent annually over
a period of many years by the Auxiliaries. '
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Besides providing for these two Diocesan Institutions, many Aux-
ilaries or Auxiliary-Guilds send, “by request,” boxes of supplies and
useful gifts to our general institutions and field.

Some of the Auxiliaries have taken up the study of Christian
Social Service as part of their regular program, using literature
to be obtained at 281 Fourth Avenue, New York. Articles from
the Dioceisan paper, and Spirit of Missions, or information as pro-
vided by the Diocesan Chairman of Christian Social Service, of the
Woman’s Auxiliary.

We feel keenly the loss of our teacher and leader, The Rev.
Charles N. Latrrop, Executive Secretary of Christian Social Service,
but we take courage and.pray that the courageous spirit of our
dead leader may possess the new Executive Secretary, and our
Church’s Christian Social Service work continue to be heroic.

Respectfully submitted, .
(Mrs. E. B.) Marie Moun&ey.
Woman’s Auxiliary Diocesan Secre-
tary of Christian Social Service. ‘

REPORT OF ISOLATED WORK OF THE
WOMAN’S AUXILIARY FOR 1930

There are 325 names on the Isolated List,—Iliving in 87 of our
99 counties and in 174 towns.

There are 40 counties without either Parish or Mission of our
Church.

There is one area of 11 adjacent counties, and another of 8 ad-
jacent counties without Services at all.

There are 7 counties with Parishes, and NO lIsolateds. There are
5 Counties where is no Episcopalian living, that can be found.

The work has been slow. Of over 400 people written to, only 63
have replied to my letters.

| advertised in the papers, last fall, in the counties where
we had no names, and found some in three of the eight counties.

I have sent lists to all the District Field Secretaries, of the names
in their Districts, and notified them of each new name found.

I have kept the Diocesan Office, and the “lowa Churchman” in-
formed of all the changes in the list.

I have sent lists to priests of all Isolateds to whom they were
the nearest Priest—to call upon when in need of ministrations.

Some of these lists were appalling. For instance, Fr. Upjohn of
Estherville was sent a list of 38 names, living in 16 towns, to all
of whom he is the nearest priest. Others are not quite so bad, but
bad enough.

I’'m hoping that when these priests become acquainted,—either
by letter, or by calling—with these Isolated people, that they will
report to me any names of those who may have moved away, or
died, or have joined some other Church. Three; reasons for removal
from the Isolated List.

I have sent the lists of books available in the free Library at 281,
to all who answered my letters. None have; used this privilege.

— 13—
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Among the 63 who answered my letters, were 20 families with
children. | found it necessary to state explicitly, that this work
was NOT just a scheme to get more money for the Church; that |
DO NOT ask the children to forsake the S. S. they may be attending;
that | have NOT adopted the usual method of having written an-
swers sent back to me for grading, etc. WHAT DO | DO?—1 send
my six S. S. pupils the same material that our home school has.—
Quarterlies, Mite-Boxes, etc. and then, each week, | write a lesson-
letter to each child, differing according to age, of course. | take
it for granted, and say so, that they have read the lesson and so
know what | am talking about; and then write as if they were a
home class, putting in some thing of the Church Year, and the ways
and customs of our Church, which are so different from others,—
and WHY. Trying to give them knowledge which will make them
feel at home, should they have a chance to attend Church, instead
of feeling lost—strangers in a strange land.

I have sent out 11 Confirmation Instructions. One Candidate has
been Confirmed and others expect to be at the first opportunity.

A wee beginning has been made along the line of Rural Auxil-
iaries,—a dream of mine. Four ladies have asked for the U. T. O.
Boxes, as they could help a little in that way, though they were
Isolated.

I sent Christmas cards to all who had answered my letters.

When | think of the great areas in lowa without Church Services
at all, my heart fails. How are these people to receive the help,
strength, and comfort, the Church can give.

Another dream?—'Would an Arch-Deacon be possible for lowa?
A priest without a parish, who would travel about visiting these
Isolated people, and give them the various Sacraments of the Church
as regularly as possible, living in the middle of the most Isolated
area, to lessen travel cost.

Would it be possible for the Auxiliary to help finance such a plan,
if the Diocese cannot do it alone?

Can this dream come true? What better plan can be thought of?

The expenses of this department from Jan, 1930 to Jan. 1931,
have been $28.22.

Money received:

From Lenten Mite Box $3.00

From Advent Mite Boxes 3.67

“To help with postage” , A2
$6.79

Respectfully submitted,
Mary Alice Bailey
Chairman for Isolated, lowa.
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REPORT OF DIOCESAN TREASURER

lowa Branch of the Woman’s Auxiliary
January 1st, 1930 to January 1st, 1931

Church’s Program $

Bishop’s Fund
JgL Mary’s,. Keokuk

Bishop Perry. Memorial Room

Current Expense

-Foreign Mission Insurance
AAlaskan Scholarship Fund___

Educational Fund

-Bishop’s Emergency Fund __ .

-Advance W ork

-Ashikago Fund (Newton Gift)
Ames Church Font Fund

Cr.
929.50
100.00
100.00

40.00
294.55

50.00
200.50

274.60

75.00
193.00

20.25
132.93

2,410.33

$2,410.33

Dr.
$ 929.50
100.00
100.00
40.00
283.95
50.00
200.00
240.98
75.00
103.00
20.25

2,232.68
177.65

$2,410.33

RECEIVED FROM PARISH BRANCHES
January 1st, 1930 to January 1st, 1931

Ames

Burlington

Cedar Falls

Cedar Rapids, Grace

Cedar Rapids, St. John’s !

Charles City

Clinton, Grace

Clinton, St. John’s

Council Bluffs

Davenport

Des Moines, St. Andrew’s
Des Moines, St. Luke’s

Des Moines, St. Mark’s

Des Moines, St. Paul's

Dubuque

Emmetsburg

Estherville

Fort Dodge

Fort Madison

Independence

lowa City;

lowa Falls

Keokuk

Marshalltown

Mason C ity

Balance
$

10.60

.50
33.62

132.93
177.65

¥ 24.00
140.00

(RN 19.00

45.00
66.00

" 5.00
80.00
45.00
125.00
205.00

I 22.00

88.00
50.00
225.00
110.00
20.00
10:00
59.00

E— 20.00

45.00
45.00
31.00
70.00
« 77.00
50.00
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Muscatine, -----------mz--mx 36.00

Newton -------m-mmmmmmmeeee 25.00
Oskaloosa ----m-m-m-m-memm 11.00
O ttum w a - , ~====mmmmm 55.00
Sioux City, St. Paul’s - 19.00
Sioux City, St. Thomas 110.00
SPENCer ---------mmmmmmmmeeee 5.00
Waterloo, Christ---—-- 55.00
Waterloo, St. Mark’s 40.00
Miscellaneous ------------ 71.15
Ames Font Fund --—-—--- 132.75
$2,251.08
Balance in Treasury January 1st, 1930 ----------mmmmmmmmmmmemn 159.25
$2,410.33
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND
Received from Branches $294.55
Disbursed: —

Journals 68.25
Stationery 22.00
President’s Expense Account 47.87
Box Secretary 3.26
Church Periodical Secretary 1.23
Secretary’s Expense Account 7.25
Treasurer’s Expense Account 10.00
Provincial Synod Dues and EXpense----------------- 20.00
Delegate Expenses to Provincial Synod-- 87.50
Executive Fund National W. A . -m-mmemmmmmmeeeeee 5.00
Devotional Secretary, Postage 1.49
Audit of Books for 3 Y ears 10.00
Balance in Fund - _ 10.60

$294.55 $294.55
Mrs. Lester T. Jackson,
Diocesan Treasurer.
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Algona

Ames
Burlington
Cedar Falls-----
Cedar Rapids,

Grace
Cedar Rapids,

St. John’s
Charles City —
Clinton
Creston
Davenport,

Trinity
Decorah
Denison
Des Moines,

St. Luke’s
Dubuque
Emmetsburg
Fort Dodge_
Fort Madison

lowa C ity ——

lowa Falls___
Keokuk,

St. John’s
Marshalltown
Muscatine
Newton
Oskaloosa
Ottumwa  -——-
Sioux City,

St. Thomas’ _
Spencer
W aterloo,

St. Mark’s

Totals _

No. of Women

— in Parish

125

150
25

379
31
13

160
162
30

71
100
48

100
120
129
51
60
155

300
44

104

PARISH REPORTS

January 1, 1930 to January 1, 1931

<
[<5]
e >
; = 8
T
o < Q =
= a O [a)
1
25 275.00 15.00 55.00
67 36.00
22 22.25 3.00 1.00
20 120.00 10.00 31.50
25 5.50 13.78
20 148.05 10.00
15 5.00
22 200.00
60 205.00
24 200.00 100.00
13 14.25 5.00
63 848.81 36.34
24 30.00 20.00
30
8
4
50 22.40
20 191.45 27.50 12.59
25 12.00 70.00
38 21.00 18.85 10.00
29 12.27
31 516.85 20.00
25 5.00
50 583.35 40.00 20.00
15 31.50
36 568.37 32.50
12 15.00

15.00
50.00

12.75

10.00
43.00

10.72

10.00

61.05

. 32,75

1.00
41.41

Totals

348.00
140.00

27.75
207.19

19.28
158.05
5.00
200.00

205.00
300.00
19.25

900.15
110.00

22.40
305.34

92.00
92.85
12.27

58i).32

6.00
684.94

31.50
600.87

15.00

2648 774 $3729.56 $166.85 $744.88 $210.46 $231.41 $5083.16
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PLEDGES FOR 1931

= &
=g = 2 2

E £ s 8 2 2 2 s

© s o =2 2 & = 7 2 X~

> £ X 5 g g2 =2 = 5

o I = N - =

o w Py ) [%p] c

w 5 a — = c 2 o 8

¢ 8 £ 5858 2 £ & & _ =

=] = < = Qo B S < S >

= 2 ;2 > S = o° 2 2 k=

o m 5_m O 4L <« wWw oM <
Ames $ 10 1 1 1 3 %1 1%$ 1 1% 209% 2
Burlington 67 5 6 1 16 3 16 16 5 135 5
Cedar Falls _ 8 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 16 3
Cedar Rapids, Grace-—- 20 1 1 1 4 1 6 3 3 40 5
Cedar Rapids, St. John’s 31 2 2 1 5 2 9 6 4 62 8
Charles C ity ----------------- .1 1 1 1 1 5
Clinton, Grace 38 6 4 1 8 2 8 7 75 5
Clinton, St. John’s 20 2 1 6 2 4 3 2 40 5
Council Bluffs 63 6 8 13 2 15 0 7 125 35
Creston 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 14 1
Davenport 93 10 17 3 20 4 20 6 2 185 20
Des Moines, St. Andrew’s 10 1 4 1 3 1 20 2
Des Moines, St. Luke’s - 40 3 1 1 9 2 10 9 5 80 8
Des Moines, St. Mark’s - 10 1 1 U 1 2 1 1 20 5
Des Moines, St. Pauls _ 100 18 16 4 15 5 18 15 9 200 25
Dubuque 50 5 6 © 10 1 15 6 4 100 10
Emmetsburg 20 2 3 1 4 1 4 4 1 40 4
Esitherville 5 1 2 1 9 1
Ft. Dodge 27 2 B 1 9 1 3 7 1 54 5
Ft. Madison 10 1 3 2 3 1 20 5
Independence 20 2 2 1 5 2 3 4 1 40 5
lowa City 20 3 2 1 5 2 2 3 2 40 5
lowa Falls 13 2 2 3 1 2 3 20 5
Keokuk 30 3 4 2 6 2 5 6 2 60 10
Marshalltown 30 2 2 2 9 2 4 4 5 60 10
Mason City 20 2 2 1 5 1 3 4 2 40 10
Muscatine 15 2 1 1 4 1 4 3 31 5
Newton 10 1 1 1 2 1 3 1 20 5
Onawa 1 1 2
Ottumwa 25 2 1 1 6 1 10 3 1 50 5
Sioux City, St. Paul’s --— 18 1 1 1 4 1 5 3 1 35 5
Sioux City, St. Thomas _ 50 7 6 2 11 2 12 4 6 100 10
Spencer 1 1 1 1 1 5
Waterloo, Christ 25 1 3 2 6 1 4 6 2 50 5
W aterloo, St. Mark’s 18 1 1 5 1 4 3 2 35 5

$928 100 100 40 218 $50 200 $161 75 $1865 $242
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UNITED THANK OFFERING
REPORT OF THE DIOCESAN CUSTODIAN

TO CLOSE OF BUSINESS JANUARY 27, 1931

Receipts
Cash on Hand, February 1, 1931 $2052.34
Cash from Parish Custodians 2045.90
Interest — e 73.90
Total $4172.14
Disbursements

Printing and postage $ 9.27
Leaflets 90
Expenses to Convention and Board Meetings —.--------------- 21.66
$ 37.83

Balance on Hand, January 27, 1931 $4134.31

COLLECTIONS FROM PARISH CUSTODIANS
SINCE FEBRUARY 1, 1930

Algona * 4.00
Ames 32.70
Boone 4.50
Burlington 226.89
Cedar Falls 19.67
Cedar. Rapids (Grace) 42.05
Cedar Rapids (St. John’s ) ------ 106.76
Charles City ——— 7.32
Clinton 33.45
Clinton (Lyon’s) - 17.03
Council Bluffs 24.04
Creston 10.90
Davenport 225.85
Decorah 4.50
Des Moines (St. Paul’s) 301.03
Des Moines (St. Luke’s) 45.31
Des Moines (St. Mark’s ) — 2273
Des Moines (St. Andrew’s ) 6.98
Dubuque £ 112.50
Emmeltsburg 19.55
Estherville 12.72
Ft. Dodge 42.17
Ft. Madison * Zigg
Girls’ Friendl .

Independence Y 21.40
lowa City 80.16
lowa Falls 25.05
Keokuk 94.20
Marshalltown s gg%g
Mason C it .

Montrose ! —_ 25.85
Muscatine — 1188
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Newton — -------mm-mm-memeeee 39.56

Onawa  ---------m--m-m-mee- — 5.00
Oskaloosa 29.66
Ottumwa 18.60
Sac City 2.00
Sioux City (St. Paul’s) . 17.35
Sioux City (St. Thomas’) 77.48
Sioux City (Morningside) 18.05
Waterloo (St. Mark’s) 48.67
Waterloo (Christ) ----—--- 100.00
Waverly 4.00
Vail 3.27

Total $2045.90

43 Parishes have made offerings. | have sent boxes and leaflets
to one new auxiliary, have sent 499 Blue Boxes, 168 letters, and
20 postcards. | have attended two board meetings, one deanery,

and made one visit to Davenport.
Respectfully submitted, -
Mrs. V. H. Morgan
United Thank Offering Custodian

REPORT OF THE SUPPLY SECRETARY

IOWA BRANCH OF THE WOMAN'S AUXILIARY TO THE
NATIONAL COUNCIL

Value of boxes sent out in 1930

Ames $ 24.00
Burlington 36.90
Cedar Falls 9.11
Cedar Rapids (Grace) 11.19
Cedar Rapids (St. John) 32.08
Clinton 26.32
Council Bluffs 62.79
Davenport 114.25
Denison 14.26
Des Moines (St. Luke’s) 16.06
Des Moines, (St. Paul’s) ' - 100.00
Fort Madison (secondhand $36.65) 23.39
Independence jmmmmm e 34.25
lowa C ity - 8.39
lowa Falls 9.00
Keokuk 60.00
Mason C ity 19.54
Marshalltown 36.30
Muscatine  ----------—-- 24.14
Newton [ 5.00
Oskaloosa 33.46
Ottumwa 31.41
Sioux City (St. Thomas’) 90.80
W aterloo (Christ Church) 22.47
Waterloo, (St. Mark’s ) 30.75
20-
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Waverly — -- 8.70
Sac City

; 28.43
Sioux City, Morningside, Calvary Chapel 15.90
928.89
36.65
Total -$965.54
Respectfully submitted,
Mrs. A. W. Brown
IN 1930, BOXES WERE SENT TO THE FOLLOWING:
Personals—
Rev. Theodore M. Burleson, Cashmere, Washington.
Rev. W. A. Bruce, Nashville, Tenn.
Miss Maude Inez Pratt, Fort Yukon, Alaska.
Miss Theresa Rivera, Ponce, Porto Rico.
Missions and Schools—
St. Barnabas Mission, Summerville, S. Carolina.
Good Shepherd Mission, Everett City, Ga.
Crow Creek and Lower Brule., Ft. Thompson, S. D.
Christ Church, Charleston, S. C.
St. Elizabeth’s Mission, La Grange, Ga.
GIRLS’ FRIENDLY SOCIETY
Sent to the Rev. F. W. Ambler, St. Barnabas Mission,
Summerville, S. Carolina
Council Bluffs (St. Paul’s) $ 6.89
Lyons (Grace) —, 8.77
Mason City (St. John’s) 13.40
Mt. Pleasant (St. Michael’s ) -——-- 3.85
Sioux City (St. Thomas) £ 25.00
Muscatine also sent Scrap-books to the Children’s ward in
our Hospital, Ponce, Porto Rico 4.00
Muscatine, Trinity 6.00
$67.91
Miss Lottie Kennedy
ST. MONICA’S TRAINING SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
Clinton (St. John’s) Box $ 7.00
Clinton (Daughters of the King) 60.00
Cedar Falls, Box 30.71
Charles City, Box (Gift ofmoney, $10) — 14.52
Des Moines (St. Luke’s) 7.50
lowa Falls 6.59
Muscatine 10.50
Waverly 7.25
Waterloo (Christ Church) 14.45
$168.52
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ST. LUKE’S HOSPITAL
Oskaloosa, Box of Linen
Sioux City, Morningside
Waterloo (Christ) 15.30

$183.82

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF
CHURCH PERIODICAL CLUB

Number of Periodicals sent in 1930 77
Number of Donors 35
Number of Bibles, etc. 6
Number of Prayer Books 43
Number of Books 14
Number of Old Magazines and Papers 36
Number of Christmas and Easter Cards 500
Number of Picture Cards 4
Number of Institutions in the Diocese aided 3
Number of Local Institutions aided 75

Total 793

Respectfully submitted,
Mrs. R. A. Nicholson
(Correspondent of the C. P. C. of lowa)

REPORT OF PUBLICITY CHAIRMAN OF THE
WOMAN’S AUXILIARY FOR 1930

There seems to be little knowledge amongst the laymen of the
Church as to the functioning of the Department of Publicity, which
igr{\g into existence with the creation of the National Council in
b From the beginning, the Department has interpreted its work to
e:

1. Propaganda for the Church’s mission,

2. Propaganda for the plans and activities of the several depart-
ments and of the Woman’s Auxiliary,

3. Promotion of publicity throughout the Church,

4. Management of publicity for the General Convention and its

Commissions.

This is a stupendous program in which all of us may choose to
have his portion.

By publicity we can increase, attendance at Church services;
bring increased offerings for Parish and Mission support; promote
success of every Parish activity. Further, it can develop sentiment
in favor of the Church; keep those interested in touch with the
Church throughout the world; reach the unfaithful ones, pave the
way for personal work with inactive people, and remind them over
and over again that the Church has not forgotten.
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Publicity provides the only possible means of bringing constantly
and continuously to the minds of all Church people, through op-
portunity for missionary service in prayer and labor and giving.

The Church moves haltingly in her missionary enterprise only
because a large percentage of her members have no part in it.

If they can be informed they will rally to its support.

A clergyman of the Church has made the statement that the
amount of money expended annually by the Department of Pub-
licity brings larger returns in actual giving to missions than does
any other item of expenditure by the National Council.

Yet the work is limited by the small amount at its disposal to
reach the whole Church. As the Church comes to realize the pro-
ductiveness of publicity in missionary endeavor, it will insist upon
its wider use.

This department is responsible for the publication of the “Spirit
of Missions” and for the “Church at Work.” The former is limited
in its circulation and is now asking for 50,000 subscribers by the
time of the Triennial in September. The “Church at Work” reaches
every Diocese and every Missionary District. It may not reach
every member but it does reach nearly every member.

The work of your Diocesan Publicity Chairman the past year has
not been arduous but on the contrary, has proven interesting and
informative. Your chairman has edited items for the Auxiliary
page in the “lowa Churchman” for nearly every issue—sent out cir-
cular letters to the. Publicity Chairmen of the fifteen Districts,
urging them to order copies of the Thank Offering issue of the
“Spirit of Missions” in order to retain the publication of this special
number; also asking the appointment of a Publicity Chairman in
each District.

Postals were, sent out, Dec. 1st, to every Parish and Mission, 65
in all, calling attention to the Missionary Newspaper Contest pub-
lished in the November “lowa Churchman,” and again asking the
appointment of a Publicity Chairman in every Branch of the
Auxiliary.

Concerning the little Newspaper Contest—there have been re-
ceived (up to date) only two responses, which is rather disappoint-
ing, as the work breeds interest in the Church and is something
that any Branch can participate in, even to one person. This has
been demonstrated by the receipt of one little newspaper sent from
a town where there are only three communicants, no Church or
services, a most appealing and well-gotten up little paper from Mrs.
Biddinger of Rock Rapids. The other paper is from Fort Dodge.

Several Branches have reported the appointment of Publicity
Chairmen.

When the importance of Church publicity is brought home to
each and every one of us, we will find an active Chairman in each
Auxiliary Branch. As a consequence there will arise more alert,
interested, and prayerful workers.

Respectfully submitted,
Mrs. L. W. Wheeler,
Publicity Chairman for lowa.
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MINUTES FOR DIOCESAN COUNCIL OF
THE G F. S.

The meeting of the Diocesan Council of the Girls’ Friendly So-
ciety in lowa was held at the time of the Diocesan Convention in
Davenport, February 3rd and 4th, 1931, in the; Cathedral Parish
House.

Because of the mid-week meeting, it was impossible to obtain a
quorum at any one time during the two days, but reports were
given Tuesday afternoon when the largest number was present.
Votes were taken from others who came in the next day.

The roll call was responded to by Miss Thorson, Mrs. Potter of
Burlington, Mrs. Loomis, Mrs. Lyons. Miss Kennedy, Miss Averill,
Mrs. Longley, Mrs. Bishop of Muscatine and Mrs. Moorehouse of
Davenport.

In the.absence of the President, Mrs. Loomis presided. The
meeting opened with the reading of the minutes of the last meeting
held in Sioux City, May 10th, 1930.

The report of the President, Mrs. Suzanne Zwemer, was read. It
told of four new branches, organized through the untiring and in-
spiring work of Miss Caroline Averill, Field Secretary. The new
branches are at Rock Rapids, lowa Falls, St. Luke’s, Des Moinesi,
and St. Paul’s, Sioux City. This growth was largely due to Miss
Averill’s talks with rectors, with girls at summer conferences, and
in parish visits, Mrs. Zwemeir reported; and lowa has become better
known than ever before nationally. Under the guidance of Mrs.
Biddinger we are doing pioneer work in rural fields, maintaining
a high standard of work throughout the year.

The treasurer’s report showed $126.99 received, and $86.60 dis-
bursed, leaving a total on hand of $40.39.

Report of State Custodian of Supplies, Mrs. Biddinger, showed
a balance of $6.08 turned over to the treasurer.

Under the Reports of the Heads of Departments:

1. For Missions— Miss Kennedy reported—

lowa Money to Missions------------ $11.00
Box W ork 67.91
u. T. O 1-09

$80.00

Miss Kennedy spoke of the many calls for leadership which if
adequately responded to would meet and carry the; responsibilities
of our work. She asked for cooperation in the branches to increase
the reading of the “Spirit of Missions” and the G. F. S. Record.
She stated that Miss Brent, National G. F. S. Head of Missions,
asked that we consider taking out a Bontoc Scholarship.

2. The result of Miss Larson’s work for Activities was shown in
the splendid poster display sent by all but three of the branches.
The posters helped materially to present the new program of work
and service to the church accomplished by the G. F. S. girls in
lowa this year.

3. For Finance, we learned that besides the amount reported by
the treasurer, $35.50 had been sent by Branches as gifts to the
National G. F. S. work.

A growing list of HonoraTy Diocesan Associates was reported.
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These church women, especially interested in girls’ work, form an
encouraging background for those doing the more active work of
leadership among the, church girls and their friends.

Mrs,. Loomis presented a business-like account sheet blank, to
each Branch Treasurer, to simplify their bookkeeping and yearly
reports.

p4. Mrs. Biddinger, for Membership and the rural work, has pre-
pared a “Who’s Who” in lowa, to be used in the near future.

5. Miss Gooch, whose Secretary’s Report was in poster form, cir-
culated the Branch Annual Report forms,- and assisted in com-
piling the new draft of the Diocesan G. F. S. Constitution, which
accepted by vote at this Council Meeting—having been submitted
for the Bishop’s approval and also for that of National G. F. S.

6. The new Department of Publicity displayed a most compre-
hensive scrap book of the clippings of all its publicity articles for
the year. This energetic Chairman, Miss Sorenson, reported 121
letters to branches, 21 to National Office, with ten articles in the
lowa Churchman, many of the nine articles sent to the Record
finding their way into print.

Reports on the G. F. S. National Council in Chicago, October
1930, were sent in by the member delegate, Dorothy Dickinson of
W aterloo, on “Goals in G. F. S.”, “How to Plan a Program” and
“Sunday Service at St. Luke’s Evanston”.

Miss Bessie Sorenson, of Clinton, reported the Associates’ Con-
ference, Publicity, Banquet Program and Saturday’s Mission Lunch-
eon, and Mrs. Lee P. Loomis reported the Evaluation of National
Council Meetings, the Diocesan Presidents’ and Secretaries’ Confer-
ence, Finance and the Pageant “Sign of the Blue”.

The report of the nominating committee was presented by Miss
Blanche Thorson. It was moved and seconded that the Secretary
be instructed to cast the ballot for the following slate: —

President— Mrs.. Lee P. Loomis, Mason City,

Vice, President— Miss Hannah Bick, Council Bluffs,

Secretary-—Mrs. D. J. Gillard, Mason City,

Treasurer— Miss Helen Gooch, Sioux City.

HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS

Membership— Mrs. E. W. Biddinger, Rock Rapids,

Finance— Mrs. Hoffmann, St. Thomas’ Church, Sioux City,

Organization— Mrs. J. D. Gillard, Mason City,

Publicity— Miss Bessie Sorenson, Clinton,

Activities— Miss Pauline Larson, Council Bluffs.

COMMITTEES UNDER ACTIVITIES
Worship— Miss Blanche Thorson, Mt. Pleasant,
Church and Missions— Miss L. R. Kennedy, Muscatine,
Social Service-—Miss Jane Harned, Waterloo,
Recreation— Miss Pearl Hawkins, Sioux City.
Classes— Mrs. P. K. Wright, lowa Falls.

The poster display in the corridors of the Parish House gave evi-
dence of an active year in G. F. S. branches in lowa, and the many
entries of advance branch programs for 1931 announce the pros-
pect of a growing desire for specific church activity among our
church girls, to be carried on in a constructive and enlightening
manner. Respectfully submitted,

Mrs. H. W. Potter,
Secretary Pro. Tern.
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I. DAVENPORT DISTRICT

Counties Places Deaneries
Scott— Davenport, Trinity Cathedral— Christ----------=----=--- Muscatine
Cedar—Durant, St. Paul’s Muscatine
Clinton— Clinton, St. John’s; Lyons, Grace-------------------- Muscatine
Muscatine— Muscatine, Trinity- Muscatine

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

District Chairman— Mrs. Webster Hakes, 307 Parkington Drive,
Muscatine. .
Religious Education— Mrs. Stanley P. Jones, 1214 Mulberry Ave.,

Muscatine.
Il. DUBUQUE DISTRICT
Dubuque— Dubuque, St. John’s;Farley, St. George’s------------ Dubuque
Delaware— M anchester Dubuque
Clayton— Elkader Dubuque
Jackson— Maquoketa, St. Mark’s Mission Dubuque

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
District Chairman— Mrs. Clyde Ellsworth, 1492 Locust St., Dubuque,.
Religious Education— Mrs. John E. Flockhart, 1428 Locust St., Du-
buque.
Publi%ity—Mrs. Charles Grorgen, Farley .
Field— Mrs. H. J. Gill, 164 Nevada St., Dubuque.

I1l. DECORAH DISTRICT

Winneshiek— Decorah, Grace Dubuque
Allamakee— W aukon ----- 1 Dubuque
Howard— Cresco, Grace, Dubuque
Fayette— Clermont Dubuque

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
District Chairman— Mrs. A. F. Barfoot, 503 Broadway, Decorah.
Vice-Chairman— Miss Priscilla Bridge, 706 Broadway, Decorali.
Religious Education—Mrs. H. M. Cummings, 404 Winnebago St.,
Decorah.
Publicity— Mrs. C. K. Peck, 500 Center Ave., Decorah.
Field— Mrs. E. F. Sellman, 114 Rural Ave., Decorah.

IV. WATERLOO DISTRICT

Blackhawk— W aterloo, Christ, St. Mark’s; Cedar Falls, St. Luke’s—

Dubuque
Grundy— Grundy Center Dubuque
Hardin—lowa Falls, St. Matthew’s Dubuque
Fayette— Oelwein, St. Mary’s Dubuque
Buchanan— Independence,, St. James’ Dubuque
Bremer— Waverly, St. Andrew’s Dubuque
Butler,— Allison Dubuque

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

District Chairman— Mrs. W. C. Bunn, 1301 Vine St., Waterloo.
Publicity— Mrs. G. H. Sharpley, 116 N. EIm, Waverly.
Field—Mrs. Edith Stevenson, 624 Kimball Ave., Waterloo.
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V. CEDAR RAPIDS DISTRICT

Counties Places Deaneries
Linn— Cedar Rapids, Grace-St. John’s Dubuque
Johnson—lowa City, Trinity Dubuque
Jones— Anamosa, St. Mark’s Dubuque
lowa— Marengo, St. James’ | Dubuque
Benton—Vinton Dubuque

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
*District Chairman— Mrs. Charles Shapleigh, 2458 25 St., Cedar

Rapids.

Religiogns Education— Miss Clara Schaad, 1005 2nd Ave., Cedar
Rapids.

Christian Social Service—Mrs. Murray Grafton, 1926 A. Ave., Cedar
Rapids.

Publicity— Mis. Watson.
Field— Mrs. Geo. Clearman.

VI. OTTUMWA DISTRICT

Wapello— Ottumwa, Trinity Muscatine
Lucas— Chariton, St. Andrew’s Des Moines
Monroe— Albia, Grace Des Moines
Appanoose— Centerville, Mystic Des Moines
Davis— Bloomfield Des Moines
Jefferson— Fairfield Muscatine
Van Buren—Keosauqua Muscatine
Mahaska— Oskaloosa, St. James’ Muscatine
Keokuk—What Cheer, St. Paul’s Muscatine
Washington— Washington Muscatine
Wayne— Corydon Muscatine

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
District Chairman— Mrs. E. G. Moon, 319 E. Maple Ave., Ottumwa.
Religious Education— Mrs. E. F. Friday, 1717 N. Court, Ottumwa.
Publicity— Mrs. P. A. Wiegner, 313 Oakwood Ave., Ottumwa.
Field—Mrs. L. C. Hardsocg, N. Court St.,, Ottumwa.

VII. BURLINGTON DISTRICT

Des Moines— Burlington. Christ Muscatine
Henry— Mt. Pleasant, St. Michael’s Muscatine
Louisa-—— W apello Muscatine
Lee—Ft. Madison, St. Luke’s Muscatine
Lee— Keokuk, St. John’s Muscatine

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
District Chairman— Mrs. Alfred D. Kdélkebeck, 213 Louisa St., Bur-
lington.
Vice-Chairman— Mrs. Guy E. Thode, 1619 River St., Burlington.
Secretary— Mrs. Mary Cochran, Keokuk.

VIII. MARSHALLTOWN DISTRICT

Marshall— Marshalltown, St.Paul’s Dubuque
Tama— Toledo and Traer - Dubuque
Poweshiek— Grinnell Dubuque
Jasper— Newton, St. Stephen’s Muscatine
* A reprint of officers for 1930.
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DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

District Chairman—-Mrs. Abbott, 9th and Main Sts., Marshalltown.

Retligious Education—Mrs." W. T. Miller, 1142 Main St., Marshall-
own.

Field— Mrs. V. H. Morgan, 905 S. Sixth St., Newton.

IX. MASON CITY DISTRICT

Chickasaw— Nashua : Dubuque
Cerro Gordo— MasonCity, St. John’s Dubuque
Floyd— Charles City, Grace ; Dubuque
Franklin—Hampton Dubuque
Worth—Northwood Dubuque
Mitchell— Osage Dubuque
Hancock— Garner Dubuque
Winnebago—Forest  City Dubuque

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

District Chairman— Mrs. B. C. Way, 321 2nd St. S. E., Mason City.

Vice-Chairman— Mrs. R. F. Kunz, 80 Linden Drive, Mason City.

Reéig[ious Education— Mrs. Susan Avery, 15 5th St. N. W., Mason
ity.

Publicity— Mrs. Fred Kunz, 130 5th St. N. E., Mason City.
Field— Miss Mary Alice Bailey, Charles City.

X. EMMETSBURG DISTRICT

Palo Alto—Emmetsburg, Trinity Des Moines
Emmet— Estherville, Grace Des Moines
Kossuth— Algona, St. Thomas’ NI Des Moines
Clay— Spencer, St. Stephen’s Des Moines
Dickinson— Spirit Lake Des Moines

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

*District Chairman— Mrs. Harry Pfiffner, 2505 8th St., Emmetsburg.
Religious Education— Mrs. M. C. Grier, Emmetsburg.
Field— Mrs. James Rainey, Estherville.

Xl. FORT DODGE DISTRICT

Webster— Fort Dodge, St. Mark’s L Des Moines
Hamilton— Webster City Des Moines
Wright—Eagle Grove, St. John’s Des Moines
Humboldt—Humboldt i _Des Moines
Pocahontas— Pocahontas : Des Moines
Greene— Jefferson, St. Thomas Des Moines
Carroll— Carroll, Trinity Des Moines
Sac— Sac City, Holy Trinity Des Moines
Buena Vista— Storm Lake Des Moines

*District Chairman— Mrs. W. E. Frandsen, 1521 7th Ave. N., Ft.
Dodge.

Religious Education— Mrs. L. W. Wheeler, 1021 7th Ave. N., Ft.
Dodge.
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XIl. DES MOINES DISTRICT

Counties Places Deaneries
Polk— Des Moines, St. Paul’s, St. Luke’s, St. Mark’s, St.

Andrew s --—- Des Moines
Guthrie— Guthrie Center Des Moines
Story— Ames, St. John’s; Nevada ; Des Moines
Marion—Knoxville r__“ Des Moines
Madison IVinterset, Trinity Mission Des Mioines
Boone Boone, Grace p : Des Moines
Dallas Adel Des Moines
Warren—Indianola Des Moines
Decatur— Garden Grove, St. John’s ; Des Moines

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

Di's\hri_ct Chairman— Mrs. Louis Denninghoff, 3844 5th Street Des
oines.
Vice-Chairman— Mrs. G. L. Clubb, 1399 44th St., Des Moines.

XIll. CRESTON DISTRICT

Union— Union, Creston, St. Paul’s Mission Des Moines
Adams-Corning "IBes KnS
Taylor Bedford Des Moines
Clarke— Osceola — X-----==-m===m-m-mmmeeem Des Moines
Ringgoid— Mount Ayr Des Moines
Adair— Greenfield Des Moines

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
District Chairman— Mrs. G. M. Morgan, 102 S. Stone; St., Creston.

X1V. COUNCIL BLUFFS DISTRICT

Pottawattamie— Council Bluffs, St. Paul’s. -Des Moines
Mills— Glenwood -Des Moines
Fremont—Tabor -Des Moines
Page— Shenandoah, St. John’s__ -Des Moines
Montgomery—Red Oak__ -Des Moines
Cass— Atlantic *Des Moines
Audubon— Audubon _ " -Des Moines
Shelby—Harlan, St. Paul’s___ -Des Moines
Harrison— Logan, Missouri Valley -Des Moines

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN
DithIri]gft Chairman— Mrs. E. P. Schoentgen, 201 3rd St Council
uffs.

ReIiPious Education— Mrs. Frederick Ellis, 100 Bluff St Council
Bluffs.

XV. SIOUX CITY DISTRICT

Woodbury— Sioux City, St. Thomas’, St. Paul’s Des Moines

Ida—Ida” Grove -~ Moineg
Crawford—Vail, St. John’s Mission;Denison,Trinity Des Moines
Monona— Mapleton, Trinity Memorial Mission Des Moines
Cherokee— Cherokee Des Moines
Plymouth LeMars, St. George’s DesMoines
Sioux Orange City Des Moines
Lyon— Rock Rapids —: DesMoines
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O’Brien— Sheldon, Primgar Des Moines
Osceola—Shelby Des Moines

DISTRICT AND DEPARTMENT CHAIRMEN

ADistrict Chairman— Miss Virginia A. Molony, 1124 Douglas St.,
Sioux City.

Religious Education— Mrs. L. E. Hubbell, Nebraska St., Sioux City.

Publicity— Miss Marie Haldeuried, 1509 6th St., Sioux City.

Field— Mrs. A. B. Grenier, 1509 6th St., Sioux City.

PAROCHIAL BRANCH OFFICERS 1931

*Albia, Grace— Pres., Mrs. Harry B. Coons, 1315 3rd Ave. E.; Secy.,
Mrs. Jess. Wier, 15th Ave. West; Treas., Mrs Ethel Tomlinson,
14th Ave. West.

*Algona— Mrs. Walfred Anderson, Box 124, Algona.

Ames, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. Paul Emerson, 1124 N. Second St;
Secy., Miss Mary Russell, 3312 Oakland; U. T. O. Custodian, Mrs.
Earl Quade, 1115 N. Second; Supply Secy., Miss Mary Russell,
3312 Oakland; C. P. C. Cor.,, Mrs. E. A. Benbrooke, 2318 Baker;
Devotional Secy., Mrs. Blaire Converse, 922 Ridgewood.

*Anamosa, St Mark’s—Pres., Mrs. Alfred Snyder; Mrs. James
Remley.

*Bancroft— Mrs. G. W. Carmean, Bancroft, la.

Boone, Grace—Pres, of St. Catherine’s Guild, Mrs. Howard Rice,
127 Tama St.

Burlington, Christ-—Pres.-, Mrs. George C. Swiler, 1724 River St;
Sec’y.,, Mrs. W. L. Cooper, 1016 N. Sixth St.; Treas., Miss Grace
Garman, 1511 S. Main St.; U. T OV Sec’y.,, Mrs. C. A. Duffy, 611
N. Seventh St.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs. H. C. Schramm,
531 S. Tenth St.; C. C. S. Secy., Mrs. George Roth, Cliff Road;
Supply Secy., Mrs. C. S. Hutchins, 1017 N. Fourth St.; C. P. C
Cor., Mrs. G. A. Chilgren, 412 North St.; Devotional Secy., Mrs.
H. C. Schramm, 531 S. Tenth St.

*Carroll, Trinity—Pres., Mrs. Chas. C. Helmer; Vice Pres., Mrs. W.
J. Holley; Secy, and Treasurer, Miss Myrtle Walden.

Cedar Falls, St. Luke’s—Pres., Mrs. John Caldwell, 104 E. Ninth
St.; Secy.-Treas., Mrs. A. B. Mason, 904 W. First St.; U.T. O:
Secy. Mrs. John Caldwell, 104 E. Ninth St.; Religious Education
Secy., Mrs. Caldwell; C. C. S. Secy., Mrs. George Wood, 307
St.; Supply Secy., Miss Nettie Johnson, 720 Main St.; C.P. C.
Cor., Mrs. N. W. Graham, 122 W. Tenth St.

Cedair Rapids, Grace,—Pres:, Mrs. E. A. Akers., 716 Fourth Ave. E.;
Secy., Mrsi. G. S Thompson, 1346 G Ave. E.; Treas., Miss Clara
Schaad, 217 S. 25th St.; U. T. O Secy., Mrs. Ulmont Healy, 936
S. 20th St.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs. M. L. Grafton, 1926
A Ave E.,, C. S. S. Secyl, Mrs. Walter Eaton, 1407 4th Ave. E;
Supply Secy., Mrs. Grafton; C. P. C. Secy.,, Mrs. J. G. Pauba,
2250 Beaver Ave.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. Grafton; Publicity Secy.,
Mrs. J. G. Rohrer, 820 A Ave. E.

Cedar Rapids, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. Wm. V. Fiebig, 225 Cottage
Grove Ave.; Secy., Mrs. Charles F. Edwards, 1942 4th Ave. E.;
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Treas., Mrs». Royal H. Holbrook, 1420 2nd Ave.; U T O Secv

Mrs. H. R. Trewin, 1955 4th Ave. E. , "

¢Centerville, Mission—Pres., Mrs. A. G. Baker, 402 S. Main St.-
_an(* Preas-’ Miss Aldena Baker, 402 S. Main St.

Chariton, St. Andrew’s—Pres., Mrs. Larimer; Secy., Mrs P L
Harper, 323 N. Grand St. ‘
Charles City, Grace— Pres., Mrs. Louis J. Lockhart, 408 Sixth Ave

%ﬂ/e'y Miss Mary Alice Bailey; Treas. and U. T. O. Secy. Miss

*Clear Lake— Pres., Mrs. De Forrest.

ClirtOnt,SV €i 15~ Pres- Mrs John L- Smith, 231y2 3rd St.; Secy.,
inni 316 3rd Ave S.; Treas., Miss Minnie BlaKe,
1001 N. 3rd St;; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. M. S. Jordan, 509 7th Ave.
b.; SuppllX Secy., Miss Bertha Joens, 1107 Pershing Blvd « C P
C. Cor., Miss Helen Ingraham, 511 N. 3rd St.

*Clinton (Lyons), Grace—Pres., Mrs. G. F. Marquis, 2222 2nd St
N.; Secy., Mrs. A. C. Sino, 1809 2nd St. N.; Treas., Mrs. Otto
Rockrohr, 2416 2nd St. N.; Publicity, Miss Bessie Sarenson.

Council Biuffs—Pres., Mrs. A. D. Annis, 226 Bluff St.; Secy., Mrs.
a C* L,V 211. Park Ave.; Treas., Miss E. P. Tinley, 553 Willow
i k \V .Educational Secy., Mrs. E. P. Schoentgen, 201 3rd St.-
Publicity, Missi Maude Johnson; Devotional Secy., Mrs F H Ellis"
100 BIuff St.

Creston, St. Paul’s—Pres., Mrs. A. E. Perry, 302 N. Jarvis St;
Secy., Mrs. Joseph H. Snair, 701 W. Mills St.; Treas., Miss Cv-
renna Scott , 811 W. Mills St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. Snair; Re-
ligious Education Secy., Mrs. George De Wolf, 502 W. Mills St.

Davenport, Trinity Cathedral—Pres., Mrs. L. E. Morehouse 1001
Tremont Ave.; Secy., Mrs. Ellanor N. Parker, 1918 Ripley St.-
Treas., Miss Louise Henigbaum, 613 Locust St; U T O Secy’
Mrs. Sarah Chappell, 2325 Ripley St.; Religious Education Secy!,
Mrs. J. D. Griffith, 1102 Brady St.; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. Carrie R
Hammatt, 1316 Kuehl St.; Supply Secy., Miss Henighaum; C. P.
C. Corr., Mrs. W. L. Allen, 11 Oak Lane; Devotional Secy., Mrs.
H. S. Longley, Bishopstead, Cathedral Close.

Decorah, Grace—Pres., Mrs. Cecilia C. Boissier; 310 River St.e
Secy.-Treas., Mrs. H. M. Cummings, 404 Winnebago St.; U. T O
Secy., Miss Priscella Bridge, 706 W. Broadway; Religious Educa-

Mrs. Cummings; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. A. F. Barfoot,
503 W. Broadway.

Denison, Trinity—Pres., Mrs. Wm. Laub, 502 Main St.; Secy, and
Treas., Mrs. Carl Richardson, 632 N. Main St.; Supply Se;cy., Mrs
vlﬁéil():/hardson; Devotional Secy., Mrs. R. R. Shaw Van, 230 Broad-

*Des Moines, St. Andrew’s— Pres., Mrs. B. M. Bengers, 1446 18th
St.; Secy., Mrs. R. G. Goveh, 3923 11th St.

Des Moines, St, Luke’s—Pres., Mrs. L. B. Martin, 1415 5th St,;
Secy., Mrs. R. B. Englebeck, 1643 Beaver Ave,; Treas., Mrs W
H. Schmidt, 1303 44th St.; U T. O. Sec’y., Mrs. Y. L. Brandt,*933
43rd St.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs Donald Larter, 1087
45th St.; C. S. S. Secy.,, Mrs. T. S. Farquarhson, 1328 9th St.;
Suppl¥ Secy., Mrs. B. C. Brown, 1318 32nd St., Devotional Secy.,
Mrs. T. W.” Bailey, 673 31st St.

Des Moines,'St. Mark’s— Pres., Mrs. Mable, Heinlen, 1334 E. Grand
Ave.; Secy, and Treas., Miss Nelly B. Kessler, 1105 E. Maple St.;
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U. T. O. Secyl, Miss Nellie Kesteven, 1109 E. Maple St.; C. C. S.
Secy., Mrs. Fannie Mearchant, 1214 E. Grand Ave;.; Devotional
Secy., Miss Jessica Johnson, 622 E. Maple St.

Des Moines, St. Paul’s—Pres., Mrs. Harry Longley,-Jr., 4331 Inger-
soll Ave., Secy.-Treas., Mrs. J. C. Enyart, 1012 Polk Blvd.j .U.T.O.
Secy., Mrs. George F. Henry, 28th St.; C. P. C. Secy., Miss Jessie
Jennings, 15th St.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. Florence Lantz; Pub-
licity Secy., Mrs. George Henry.

¢Des Moines, St. Simon the Cyrenian—Pres., Mrs. J. B. Morris, 955
Seventeenth St.

Dubuque, St. John’s-—Afternoon Section—Pres., Mrs. C. L. Ells-

worth, 1492 Locust St.; Secy., Miss Edith N. Dennis, 345 West
Locust St.; Treas., Miss Josephine Buchman, 27 E. 15th St.; U.
T. O. Secy., Mrs. Herbert Adams, 630 W. 11th St.; Religious
Education Secy., Mrs John Flockhart, 1428 Locust St.;; C. S. S.
Secy., Mrs. C. W. Richards, 1083 Grove Terrace; Supply Secy.,
Miss Jessie Norman, 441 Bluff St.; C. P. C. Cor., Miss Norman;
Devotional Secy., Miss Kate K. Van Duzee, 1471 Main St.; Pub-
licity Secy., Mrs. Ellsworth.
Evening Section— Pres., Mrs. M. L. Van Dagens, Claridge Apts.;
Secy.-Treas., Miss Edna Cullen, 1408 Mt. Pleasant Ave.; U. T. O.
Secy., Miss A. Rubesky, Prescott Apts.; Religious Education
Secy., Mrs. Flockhart; C. C. S. Secy., Mrs. C. W. Richards, 1083
Grove; Terrace; Supply Secy., Mrs. Helen Wiedner, 1298 Main St.;
Devotional. Secy., Miss Emma Marshall, 630 Fenelon Place; Pub-
licity Secy., Miss Betty Poole.

¢Eagle Grove, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. J. L. Nott.

Emmetsburg, Trinity—Pres,, Mrs. E. E. Wilhite; Secy.-Treas., Mrs.
Fred Parks; U. T. O. Secy.,, Mrs A. T. Horton; Religious Educa-
tion Secy., Mrs. M. C. Grier; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. A. J: Burt:

¢Estherville— Pres., Mrs. A. G. Metzger, 612 So. 9th St.

Fort Dodge, St. Mark’s— Afternoon Section—Pres., Mrs. W. E.
Frandsen, 1521 7th Ave. N.; Secy.-Treas., Mrs. E. A. Wilber, 302
8th St. N.; U. T. O, Secy., Mrs. W. J. Fitzsimdns, 1322 5th
Ave. S.

¢Fort Dodge, St. Mark’s—Evening Section— Pres., Mrs. Geo. Smith,
N. 7th St., Administration Bldg., Fair Grounds; Secy, and Treas.,
Alla B. Hardin, 418 S. 7th St.

Fort Madison, St. Luke’s—Pres., Miss Bess E. Finch, 817 Ave. D;
Secy.-Treas., Mrs. James H. Dew-Brittain, 607 Ave. E; U. T. O.
Secy., Mrs. L. Simmons, 508-A 8th St.; Supply Secy. Miss Bess E.
Finch, 817 Ave. D.

¢Garden Grove!, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. E. J. Lovett; Secy, and
Treas., Mrs. H. S. Lovett.

¢Harlan, St Paul’s—Pres., Mrs. A. C. Clapp, Harlan, la.; Secy, and
Treas., Mrs. F. F. Wunder, Harlan, la.

Independence, St James—Pres., Mrs. Libbie Raffant; Secy., M. A
Purdy; Treas., Mrs. Charles Penrose; U. T. O. Se;cy.,, Mrs. Alice
Murphy; Religious Education Secy., Dr. Woodruff; Devotional
Secy, Mrs. Dorothea Raffant.

lowa City, Trinity—Pres., Mrs. Russell J. Potts, 625 Bowers St.;
Secy., Mrs. G. L. Isensee, 522 Davenport St.; Treas. and U. T. O.
Secy., Mrs. G. W. Martin, Ridge, Road; Religious Education Secy.,
Mrs. G. M. Dean, 624 Dearborn St.; C. S. S. Secy., Miss Cora
Morrison, 325 E. College St.; Supply Sec’y, Mrs. Herbert O. Lyte,
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222 Ronalds St.; C. P. C. Cor., Mrs. Earle L Waterman, 231 Pair-
\S/itew tAve.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. R. E. McEvoy, 212 S. Johnson
reet.

lowa Falls, St. Matthews—Pres., Mrs. J. R. Chilcote, 210 Washing-
ton Ave.; Secy., Mrs. D. Y. Tarken, 519 Talbot St.; Treas., Mrs.
W. A. O’Neal, 819 Stevens St.; U. T. O. and Supply Secy., Mrs.
Frank Roberts, Box 539; Religious Education Secy., Mrs. Chil-
cote; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. O'Neal; C. P. C. Cor., Mrs. S: Shirven,
804 Stevens St.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. Jessie Jones, Rocksylvania
Avenue.

*Jefferson— St. Thomas™— Pres., Mrs. Ben Hamilton, 307 So. Chest-
nut St.; Secy., Mrs. J. K. Johnson; Treas., Mrs. Paul Cutler

Keokuk, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. John W. Marsh, 909 Franklin St.;
Secy, Mrs, Edgar R. Cochran, 220 N. 5th St.; Treas., Mrs. C L.
Foster, 205 N. 5th St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. W. S. D. Eamont, 425
Concert St.

*L.e Mars, St. George’s—Pres., Mrs. C.'L. Yon Berg, 214 1st Ave. N.
E.; Secy, and Treas., Miss Anna B. Cole, 226 1st Ave. S. E

*Marcus— Mrs. Wm. Gund, Marcus:, la.

*Mason City, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. B. C. Way, 321 2nd St. S. E.;
Vice Pres., Mrs. R. H. Kunz, 90 Linden Drive; Secy., Mrs. M. D.
McMichael, 1120 3rd St. S. W.; Box Fund, Mrs. R. H. Kunz, 130
5th St. N. E.; Treas., Mrs. S. R. Bowen, 103 S. Conn. Ave,;
U. T. O, Mrs. W. H. Baird, N. W. of City; Publicity, Mrs. G.
S. Avery, Jr., 819 N. Pennsylvania Ave.

*Mapleton, Trinity Memorial—Pres., Mrs. C. F. Whiting, Mapleton,
la.; Secy., Mrs.. H. E. Williamson; Treas., Mrs. R. W. Cassay.
¢+Maquoketa, St Mark’s—Pres., Mrs. Wm. Condill; Main St.; Pres.

Young People’s Guild, Mrs. Louise Maiolfi, 112 Main St.

Marshalltown, St. Paul’s—Pres., Mrs. Graham W. Lawrence, 3 N.
9th St.; Secy., Mrs. Roy Bradbury, 302 N. 3rd St.; Treas., Mrs.
Earl Bowman, 112 W. Linn St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. Ross Apgar,
615 W. Main St.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs, D B. Rasmusi-
sein, 203 S. 8th St.; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. A. J. Winn, 512 W.
Nevada St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. H. J. Allard, 407 N. 4th St.; C.
P. C. Cor.,, Mrs. A. T. Elder, 6 S. 9th St.; Devotional Secy., Mrs.
W. T. Miller, 411 N. 1st St.; Publicity Secy., Mrs. Wm. Shirley,
812 W. Main St.

Muscatine, Trinity—Pres., Mrs. J. W. Rankin, 1107 Oakland Drive;
Secy.-Treas., Mrs. A. R. Tipton, 806 W. 3rd St.; U. T. O. Secy:,
Miss Elsa Fack, 201 E. 8th St.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs.
Stanley Jones, 1214 Mulberry Ave.; C. P. C. Cor., Mrs. J. C. Der-
medy, 2116 Mullberry Ave.

¢Nashua— Pres., Mrs. Frank D. Hammond; Secy., Miss Lena Luders,
19 15th St. N. W.

Newton, St. Stephen’s—Pres., Mrs. L. D. Cunningham, 525% W.
Fourth St. S.; Secy., Mrs. W. F. Jacobs, 1011 N. 4th Ave. E.;
Treas., Mrs. Charles Butcher, W. 6th St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs.
Leigh Hough, 409 E. 2nd St. N.; Religious Education Secy., Mrs.
Edith McMurray, 609 S. 6th Ave. W.; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. E.
Kirchner, Besser Apt.; Supply Secy., Mrs. Charles W. Morrison,
316 W. 2nd St. S.; C. P. C. Cor., Miss Lillian Taylor, 205 1st St.
S.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. A. M. McLaughlin, Green Gables Apt.

Oskaloosa, St. James—Pres., Mrs. C. C. Orvis, 439 N 4th St.; Secy.-
Treas., Mrs. C. A. O’'Rourke, 305 1st Ave E.; U. T. O. Secy.; Miss
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Katherine Adams, 709 High Ave E.; Religious Education Secy.,
Mrs. John Rowell, 312 1st Ave. E.; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. Roy Robin-
son, 1205 S. Market St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. Orvis; C. P. C. Cor.,
Mrs. Rowell; Devotional Secy., Mrs. Orvis; Publicity Secy., Mrs.
Daisy Edson, 324 N. Market St.

Ottumwa, Trinity—Pres., Mrs. E. G. Moon, 319 E. Maple Ave;
Secy., Mrs, G. W. Courtney, 905 N. Court St.; Treas., Mrs. L. C.
Hardsocg, N. Court St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. Lillian M. Brown,
205 S. Milner St.; Supply Secy., Miss Ann Pallister, 125 Vogel
é\tve.;t Religious Education Secy., Mrs. E. F. Friday, 1717 N. Court

reet.

*Onawa— Pres., Mrs. P. K. Holbrook; Secy., Mrs, H. L. Morrison.

*Oelwein, St. Mary’s— Pres., Mrs. J. A. Boylan.

*Perry— Mrs. E. W. Bradley.

*Rock Rapids— Mrs. Juanita Biddinger.

Sioux City, Morningside Calvary Chapel—Pres., Mrs. S. B. Mc-
Cauley, 203 N. Helen St.; Secy.-Treas., Mrs. Vera Daniel, 2554 S.
Cedar St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. E. W. Clark, 3601 3rd Ave.; Re-
ligious Education Secy., Mrs. Mark H. Dobson, 2102 Magnolia
St.; C. S. S. and Supply Secy., Mrs,. R. C. Cook, 1100 S. Paxton
St.; Publicity Secy., Mrs. S. Hardwick, 1835 Whitehouse Ave.

Sioux City, St. Paul’s—Pres., Mrs. A. B. Grenier, 1509 W. 6th St.;
Secy., Mrs. L. H. Collings, 326 S. Prescott Ave.; Treas., A. O.
Foersted, 1801 Myrtle St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. P. C. Britton, 1901
W. 5th St.; Religious Education Secy., The Rev. McCowling, 622
Center St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. Butler, 613 Rebecca St.; Devotional
Secy., Mrs. W. A. Lindsay, 1813 Ross St.

Sioux City, St. Thomas™—Pres., Mrs. R. B. Comstock, 112 16t;h St.;
Secy., Mrs. H. H. Roberts, 1511 W. 17th St.; Treas., Mrs. H. O.
Dorn, 311 E. Lincoln St., South Sioux City, Neb.; U. T. O. Secy.,
Miss Virginia. Moliney, Parish House, 12th and Douglas; Religious
Education Secy., Mrs. Comstock; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. W. L. Egan,
2825 Jennings St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. C. B. Randall, 409 George
St.; C. P. C. Cor.,, Mrs. A. L. Fletcher, 121 E. Taylor St., South
gitouxt City, Neb.; Devotional Secy., Mrs. Anna Gregory, 715 22nd

reet.

Spencer, St. Stephen’s—Pres., Mrs. Paul Anderson, W. 5th St
Secy., Mrs. Leo Dailey, W. 3rd St.; Treas., Mrs. F. J. Konsella,
E. 2nd St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. E. W. Harriman, E. 4th St:; Re-
ligious Education Secy., Mrs. Edward-Ashley, E. 4th St.; C. S. S.
Secy., Mrs. E. G. Morgan, W. 2nd St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. Staples,
W. 4th St.; C. P. C. Cor., Mrs. Wm. Woodcock, Riverside DVive;
Devotional Secy., Miss Edith Odle, W. Pine St.

*Shenandoah, St. John’s—Pres., Mrs. Richard Tyner; Secy., Mrs. J.
S. Cutter.

*Traer— Mrs. Kenneth Moore.

*Vail, St John’s— Pres., Mrs. E. W. Chamberlain, Mrs. Julia Dawson.

W aterloo, Christ Church—Pres., Mrs. W. C. Bunn, 1301 Vine St;
Secy., Miss Jessie Cooley, 220 Walnut Court; Treas., Mrs. Fred
L. Northey, 219 Kingbard; U. T. O. Secys., Mrs. Leo Larsen and
Mrs. F. Lanprich, 1210 Conger St.; Religious Education Secy.,
Miss Grace.Hawks, 438 Riehl St.; C. S. S. Secy., Mrs. E. B. Moun-
sey, 610% E. 4th St.; Supply Secy., Mrs. C. F. Stevenson, 624
gimball Ave”; Devotional Secy., Mrs. E. M. Steely, 216 Franklin

treet.
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W aterloo, St. Mark’s— Pres., Mrs. John Chevalier, 414 Randall St.;
Secy., Mrs. Julius Kuhrke, 700 Denver St.; Treas., Mrs George
Linglebach, 1717 W. 3rd St.; U. T. O. Secy., Mrs. C. L. Arm-
strong, Walnut Court.

*Waverly, St Andrew’s— Pres., Mrs. John Knott, S. State St.; Treas..
Hulda Luesenhap, 200 S. Aspen St.; Chairman of Publicity, Miss
Rachel Stephenson, 212 E. Jefferson St.; Chairman Christian So-
cial Service, Mrsi Eldon R. Laird, 205 S. Harman St.; Chairman
of Isolated, 411 State St.; Devotional Chairman, Mrs. P. R.
Sparks, 715 W. Bremer Ave.

*What Cheer, St. Paul’s— Mrs. Robert Schott, What Cheer, la.
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